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Executive Director 

Timothy Fitzgerald 
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Ferris Betrus Jr. 
Kirk Hinman 

Mary Faith Messenger 
Eugene Quadraro 

Stephen Zogby 

To: Oneida County Industrial Development Agency Board of Directors 
From: Shawna M. Papale 
Date:  September 11, 2023 
RE: OCIDA Meeting Agenda 

The Oneida County Industrial Development Agency shall meet – 8:00 AM Friday, September 15, 2023 
Members of the public may attend in person at MV EDGE offices at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY 13441. The 
Minutes of the Agency meeting will be transcribed and posted on the OCIDA website. 

1. Executive Session

2. Minutes- June 2023 (revised), July 2023

3. Financials- August 2023, 2024 Budget Draft

4. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the Yoder Properties, Ltd. (Stark Truss) Facility. The Agency 
wishes to adopt the determinations and findings of the lead agency, the City of Rome Planning Board.

5. Consider a final authorizing resolution relating to the Yoder Properties, Ltd. (Stark Truss) Facility, 
authorizing financial assistance in the form of exemptions from exemptions from sales tax (valued at
$78,450.00), exemptions from mortgage recording tax (valued at $14,350.00) and reduction of real property 
taxes for a period of 10 years (valued at $568,959.00), which is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy and approving the form and execution of related documents, all in the Agency’s standard 
form and subject to counsel review. The Agency conducted a public hearing on June 1, 2023 and mailed 
certified notices to the taxing jurisdictions on May 15, 2023. As the project involves the abandonment of a 
facility, the Agency mailed certified notices to the affected jurisdictions on May 15, 2023.

6. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the Above Grid Rome, LLC Facility, granting preliminary 
approval for financial assistance in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 25 years 
during which time the Company will pay PILOT Payments equal to $7,000 per MW-AC (value of exemption 
approximately $517,966), which is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and 
authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing.

7. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the Above Grid Rome, LLC Facility. City of Rome Planning Board 
acted as lead agency and the Agency wishes to concur with the determinations and findings of the lead 
agency as a “Type 1” action.

8. Consider an inducement resolution relating to the BW Solar Holding Inc. Facility, granting preliminary 
approval for financial assistance in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 25 years 
during which time the Company will pay PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per MW-AC (value of 
exemption approximately $1,120,396), which is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy 
and authorizing the Agency to conduct a public hearing.

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/
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9. Consider a SEQR resolution relating to the BW Solar Holding Inc. Facility. City of Rome Planning Board 
acted as lead agency and the Agency wishes to concur with the determinations and findings of the lead 
agency as a “Type 1” action.

10. Housing Policy Discussion

11. Solar Policy Discussion

12. Annual Project Review Discussion (Continued)

13. Old Business

14. New Business

Next meeting date – FRIDAY, October 20th at 8 AM at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY 

mailto:info@mvedge.org
http://www.mvedge.org/


DRAFT 

Page 1 of 3 

Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

June 16, 2023 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY  

And via Webex Video/Teleconference 
 
 

Members Present: David Grow, Ferris Betrus, Mike Fitzgerald, Mary Faith Messenger, Kirk Hinman, Gene Quadraro. 

Members Present – WebEx:. Steve Zogby 

EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Maureen Carney, Tim Fitzgerald, Laura Cohen, Mark Kaucher, Hannah Phillips, Bill 
Van Shufflin. 

EDGE Staff Present – WebEx: Steve DiMeo  

Other Attendees:  Mark Levitt, Levitt & Gordon; Rome Mayor Jackie Izzo, Shaun Kaleta, Oneida County; Steve Surace, 
126 Business Park Drive LLC. 

Other Attendees – WebEx: Linda Romano and Laura Ruberto, Bond, Schoeneck & King. 

 
Chair Grow called the meeting to order at 8:04 AM.  
 
At 8:05 AM a motion to enter executive session in order to discuss pending contracts was made by F. Betrus, seconded by 
M. Fitzgerald, and carried 7-0. 

S. Zogby left the meeting at 9:00, during executive session. 

At 9:20 AM a motion to exit executive session and return to the open meeting was moved by F. Betrus, seconded by M. 
Fitzgerald, and carried 6-0. 
 

Minutes  
The members reviewed the May 5, 2023 meeting minutes. With no comments or corrections, M. Fitzgerald moved, and 
F. Betrus seconded, to approve the minutes as presented. The motion carried 6-0. 

126 Business Park Drive - Subleases 
M. Fitzgerald moved that any changes to subleases at the property covered by this particular project which do not 
effect the existing PILOT do not need to be brought to Agency members for their approval but can be approved by 
bond counsel. M.F. Messenger seconded the motion, which passed 6-0. 
 
Financials  
M. Carney presented the 5/31/2023 interim financial statement. Cash has held steady over the last 12 months. The 
current balance in accounts receivable reflects annual rents which have not yet been received. There are four PILOTs 
that have annual PILOT bills due July 1. These bills were generated May 31st. All but one of these payments have already 
been received. M. Fitzgerald asked about the current status of the EDF Renewables project (2021) and the Source 
Renewables LLC project (2020), both of which have paid commitment fees but have not yet closed. Bond counsel stated 
they would check in on these.  Agency received and accepted the interim financials presented, subject to audit. 
 
McCraith Beverages, Inc. Facility – Sales Tax Exemption  
Chair Grow introduced a resolution relating to the McCraith Beverages, Inc. Facility, authorizing an increase in the value 
of sales tax exemption from $214,720 to $257,961 (an increase of $43,241) and approving the form and execution of 
related documents, subject to counsel review. M. Fitzgerald stated that the intention of the Agency should be to exempt 
from taxation building materials and equipment inside the building that will eventually result in an increased assessment 
and tax payment in the County. Including the vehicles listed in the machinery and equipment list for sales tax exemption 
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is outside the intended scope of benefits. M. Fitzgerald moved to approve $242,942 in sales tax exemption, excluding 
the trucks and truck boxes listed, and to further reduce the exemption by the amount of sales tax applied to the 
liftgates if they are determined to be part of the trucks. The total cost of the liftgates is $56,069. F. Betrus seconded 
the motion. The motion passed 6-0.   
 
Michael and Diane Baldwin/Dart Properties Facility  
M. Fitzgerald introduced a resolution relating to the Michael and Diane Baldwin/Dart Properties Facility, consenting to a 
sublease to ANDRO Computational Solutions, LLC and approving the form and execution of related documents subject to 
counsel review, all conditioned upon the Company entering into an amended sale-leaseback transaction and the 
Sublessee assuming the Company’s obligations under the Lease Agreement only with respect to the subleased premises. 
M.F. Messenger moved, and K. Hinman seconded, to approve the Agency’s resolution consenting to a sublease of the 
Dart Properties Facility to ANDRO Computational Solutions, LLC and approving the form and execution of related 
documents subject to counsel review, all conditioned upon the Company entering into an amended sale-leaseback 
transaction and the Sublessee assuming the Company’s obligations under the Lease Agreement only with respect to 
the subleased premises. The motion carried 5-0. Chair Grow abstained from all conversation and voting. 
 
GLDC Buildings 770, 776, and 778 – Consent to Subleases 
Chair Grow introduced three resolutions: 1) relating to the GLDC Building 770 Facility (428 Phoenix Drive), consenting to 
a sublease of commercial space and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review; 
2) relating to the GLDC Building 776 Facility (474 Phoenix Drive), consenting toa sublease with Arcfield Acquisition 
Corporation (successor to Peraton Inc.) and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel 
review; and 3) relating to the GLDC Building 778 Facility (775 Daedalian Drive), consenting to a sublease modification 
with HII Mission Technologies Corp. and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel 
review. M. Fitzgerald moved, and F. Betrus seconded, to approve the three resolutions relating to the GLDC subleases, 
at Buildings 770, 776, and 778. The motion carried 6-0. 
 
New York, Susquehanna and Western Railway Corporation Facility – Land Acquisition 
Chair Grow introduced a resolution relating to The New York, Susquehanna and Western Railway Corporation Facility, 
authorizing the acquisition of certain land by New York State Department of Transportation through eminent domain all 
in furtherance of the Route 840/Judd Road project and approving the form and execution of related documents, subject 
to counsel review. While the Agency no longer owns an interest in the property, at the time of the taking the Agency 
owned fee title and is being requested to deliver certain documents to finalize the transaction. Chair Grow further 
explained that the Agency is waiving any claim that it may have had to compensation at the time of the taking. M. 
Fitzgerald moved, and K. Hinman seconded, to approve a resolution relating to The New York, Susquehanna and 
Western Railway Corporation Facility, authorizing the acquisition of certain land by New York State Department of 
Transportation through eminent domain all in furtherance of the Route 840/Judd Road project and approving the 
form and execution of related documents, subject to counsel review. The motion carried 6-0. 
 
Mohawk Adirondack & Northern Railroad Inc./Genesee & Mohawk Valley Railroad, Inc - Update 
M. Fitzgerald requested an update concerning the company’s financials and fee arrangements information that was 
previously requested at the time of project inducement. S. Papale stated that, to date, no such information on these or 
insurance details has been provided by the company. Additionally, the lease with GLDC has not been executed due to 
lack of insurance information. 
 
Annual Employment Review 
Chair Grow directed the members’ attention to the memorandum and supplemental material that was provided 
detailing the performance of Agency-supported businesses and their related job creation and retention requirements. 
Chair Grow stated that, considering the various local and macroeconomic factors at hand, this report is quite favorable, 
with only four Agency-supported projects experiencing a jobs shortfall. This is a credit to the Agency’s staff which 
communicates regularly with these businesses to identify and address issues ahead of time.  
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Recertification of 2022 Annual Report 
Chair Grow introduced a resolution approving the recertification and submission of the Agency’s 2022 Annual Report to 
New York State. The report had to be modified to correct some errors in the original report. F. Betrus moved, and E. 
Quadraro, to approve a resolution approving the recertification and submission of the Agency’s 2022 Annual Report to 
New York State. The motion carried 6-0. 
 
PlacerAI 
S. Papale explained that over the past year, staff have been able to use a software called PlacerAI. This software tracks 
employment and visitor data using cell phone pings, and has been helpful for several economic development projects 
and community presentations. This software requires a yearly subscription, and Mohawk Valley EDGE is requesting that 
the Agency assist with the cost for the next subscription year. The request to the Agency is $10,000. Chair Grow 
suggested that this request be forwarded to the Oneida County Local Development Corporation. No other action taken. 
 
Marcy Nanocenter Master PILOT Agreement – Proposed Revisions 
M. Fitzgerald brought up potential revisions to the Marcy Nanocenter Master PILOT Agreement that had been drafted 
by M. Levitt. These revisions are based on conversation that had taken place among Agency members. The proposed 
revisions were given to staff and counsel at Mohawk Valley EDGE. No additional progress has been made to incorporate 
these proposed revisions into the PILOT Agreement. Chair Grow explained that the concern is with the portion of PILOT 
payments that are received after all infrastructure costs have been paid off, anticipated after year 15, that are not 
designated to the taxing jurisdictions. The Agency wants to confirm that these funds will be used for site- and industry-
related development costs, and requests periodic updates on how these funds are spent. Further, the Agency, having a 
responsibility to the taxing jurisdictions, wants to ensure that it has the ability to terminate future spending of PILOT 
funds if it is determined that any usage of funds has not been related to Marcy Nanocenter. Chair Grow directed M. 
Levitt to circulate to the members the most recent draft of proposed revisions to the agreement.  
 
At 9:58 AM, M. Fitzgerald moved to go into executive session to discuss a potential contract issue. The motion was 
seconded by F. Betrus and carried 6-0. 
 
At 10:06 AM, E. Quadraro moved to exit executive session and return to the open meeting. The motion was seconded by 
F. Betrus and carried 6-0. 
 
There being no further business, at 10:07 AM Chair Grow asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting: M. Fitzgerald 
moved, and M.F. Messenger seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried 6-0. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Tim Fitzgerald 
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Minutes of the Meeting of the  
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

July 14, 2023 
584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, NY  

And via Webex Video/Teleconference 
 
 

Members Present: David Grow, Ferris Betrus, Mary Faith Messenger, Gene Quadraro. 

Members Present – WebEx: Mike Fitzgerald, Steve Zogby 

EDGE Staff Present: Shawna Papale, Maureen Carney, Tim Fitzgerald, Laura Cohen, Mark Kaucher, Hannah Phillips, Bill 
Van Shufflin. 

Other Attendees:  Jenna Peppinelli, Levitt & Gordon; Rome Mayor Jackie Izzo, Shaun Kaleta, Oneida County; Steve 
Surace, 126 Business Park Drive LLC. 

Other Attendees – WebEx: Linda Romano and Laura Ruberto, Bond, Schoeneck & King; Paul Goldman, Goldman 
Attorneys PLLC. 

 
Chair Grow called the meeting to order at 8:03 AM.  
 

At 8:07 AM a motion to enter executive session in order to discuss litigation and pending contracts was made by, seconded 
by M.F. Messenger, and carried 6-0. 

At 9:30 AM a motion to exit executive session and return to the open meeting was moved by E. Quadraro, seconded by 
F. Betrus, and carried 6-0. 
 
Minutes  
Chair Grow stated that the June 16, 2023 meeting minutes that were included in the meeting materials are in need of 
correction, and that review and approval of the minutes should be deferred until the August meeting. However, the 
recording of the meeting has been posted online, which satisfies New York State rules. 
 
McCraith Beverages, Inc. Facility – Sales Tax Exemption  
M. Fitzgerald asked if it had been clarified if the lift gates that were included in the proposed equipment list from 
McCraith Beverages, Inc. were determined to be equipment for the building or equipment for the trucks. S. Papale 
confirmed that the lift gates are equipment for the trucks. The Agency would be allowed to exempt these items from 
sales tax under New York State law, but the motion passed in the May 2023 meeting did not include this item as sales 
tax-exempt. Shawna asked the members to confirm that this approach of excluding rolling stock (trucks, etc.) from sales 
tax exemption should be Agency policy moving forward. There was agreement among the members to exclude from 
sales tax exemption any rolling stock that has to be registered, licensed, and titled to operate. 
 
Financials  
M. Carney presented the 6/30/2023 interim financial statement. M. Carney explained how commitment fee funds from 
three solar applications will be used: the Source Renewables commitment fee will be held and used to pay for certain 
legal bills from bond counsel related to the project; the EDF Renewables commitment fee will be held by the Agency, 
and the Solitude Solar commitment fee will be held for another month. M. Carney explained that the Agency’s CDs are 
laddered; one of the Agency’s 6-month CD ($250,000) was due to mature July 1, and this was extended another three 
months; another 13-month CD ($250,000) matures in February 2024. Current cash position is fine. The Agency also 
closed on one project in June: Universal Photonics’ 2023 bank refinance. This closing fee was $1,500. PILOT billing has 
been completed and funds have been received.  Agency received and accepted the interim financials presented, 
subject to audit. 
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S. Zogby left the meeting at 9:53. 
 
Annual Employment Review 
S. Papale shared that the Agency requested that ECR International and Renmatix come and present to the members to 
discuss their employment shortfall. Personnel from Renmatix had schedule conflicts on the date of the July meeting, and 
requested to instead present at the Agency’s August meeting. That was acceptable to both S. Papale and Chair Grow. 
Personnel from ECR International requested to delay a presentation to the members until August as well, as they would 
first like the chance to discuss internal changes with Agency staff. A meeting with Agency staff has been scheduled for 
next week. S. Papale reminded the members that both Universal Photonics and Vicks were given one year to address 
their employment shortfalls, and that the Agency will consider any necessary action next year. 
 
New Business – Recent Wolfspeed Announcements 
M. Fitzgerald brought up the two recent Wolfspeed-related announcements, first the financing it recently received to 
facilitate expansion, and second its new supply agreement with Japanese company Renesas, and questioned how these 
announcements impact the Mohawk Valley Fab. B. Van Shufflin explained that a portion of the new financing will go 
towards the full tooling and fit-out of the Mohawk Valley Fab ahead of schedule. He also explained that the new deal 
with Renesas is for wafers which are produced in North Carolina, and this is a result of Wolfspeed’s current development 
of a mega-materials fab that will produce all Wolfspeed wafers. This deal is not expected to impact production of or 
demand for Mohawk Valley Fab-produced semiconductor chips. 
 
Annual Reporting 
S. Papale shared that staff is considering creating a web-based portal that would be utilized by companies to fulfill their 
annual reporting requirement, as opposed to the current method of completing an Excel spreadsheet and providing 
supplemental documentation. There is one other IDA in New York State that receives information this way, and staff has 
spoken with this IDA to learn more about the process and technology. However, there would be a considerable cost to 
implementing this portal. 
 
There being no further business, at 10:07 AM Chair Grow asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting: F. Betrus moved, 
and E. Quadraro seconded the motion to adjourn. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Tim Fitzgerald 



Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2023 

 

Balance Sheet:  

1. Cash has decreased by 14% over the last 12 months 

2. The balance in restricted cash is made up of the PILOT holdings related to the Hartford PILOT and 

Wolfspeed 

3. The balance in accounts receivable is for annual rent billed but not yet received by the Agency 

4. The $1,000 commitment fees collected from the following for projects that have not closed as of June 

2023: 

1. EDF Renewables (former partner in the Quiet Meadows projects) (received November 2021) 

2. Central Utica Building (received November 2021) 

3. Solitude Solar, LLC (received February 2022) 

4. Kris-Tech Wire, Inc. (received January 2023) 

5. Collins Solar (received March 2023) 

6. Yoder Properties (received May 2023) 

5. Fund balance decreased by 16% over the last 12 months 

 

Budget Comparison Report (Income Statement): 

 

1. Interest earned on the Berkshire Bank CD have been booked through 8/31; the Key Bank Treasury 

Note earnings have been booked through 6/30/23 and interest earned on the Adirondack Bank CD has 

been booked through 7/24/23 

2. Year to date revenue is under budget; administrative fees on projects not yet closed total approximately 

$262,000; closings and application fees received to date are as follows: 

 
3. In 2022 $7,500 was authorized to support Madison Oneida Boces tuition reimbursement, the 2nd 

invoice from Madison Oneida Boces has been received and paid; total paid is $7,312.50  

  

Other Significant Items to Note: 

 

1. The IDA received all payments related to the Hartford PILOT for 2022 and payments to the 

jurisdictions were made in accordance with the PILOT agreement; a payment was received by Indium 

for the last year of the Hartford PILOT; the Agency will distribute the funds once all are billed by the 

jurisdictions and received by the Agency 

2. The Wolfspeed PILOT due no later than 9/30 was received by the Agency on 8/25; the allocation to the 
jurisdictions and EDGE will be made in September in accordance with the PILOT agreement 

1/30/2023 Solar Power Capital (SSC Kirkland) Admin & Commitment Fee 41,580.40

2/7/2023 Kris-Tech Wire Application Fee 500.00

3/15/2023 Fiber Instrument Sales Admin & Commitment Fee 1,918.00

3/21/2023 Mohawk Adirondack & Northern RR Corp Application Fee 500.00

3/21/2023 Collins Solar Application Fee 500.00

4/28/2023 Fiber Instrument Sales Admin Fee 418.00

5/8/2023 Yoder Properties AKA Stark Truss Application Fee 500.00

6/20/2023 McCraith Beverages/STD Realty Application Fee 500.00

6/29/2023 Facilities Realty Management Vernon LLC Admin Fee 1,500.00

7/31/2023 Mohawk Adirondack & Northern RR Corp Admin & Commitment Fee 5,000.00

Total as of 8/31/23 52,916.40



Current Year Prior Year

794,613 927,051 1

810,956 37,445 2

PILOT Holdings- Payment Received (810,956) (37,445) 2

13,670 500 3

1,788 1,491 

810,071 929,042 

6,679 6,679 

(6,679) (6,679)

0 0 

810,071 929,042 

3,918 56,634 

5,000 4,667 

6,000 9,000 4

14,918 70,301 

14,918 70,301 

395,153 458,741 5

400,000 400,000 

795,153 858,741 

810,071 929,042 

Accounts Payable 

Total Assets

Liabilities

Restricted Cash - PILOT Holdings

A/D-Furniture/Fixt/Eqpt 

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Balance Sheet

Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Fund Balance

Fund Balance-Board Restricted

Total Net Assets

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred Revenue

Current Liabilities

August 31, 2023 and 2022

Fixed Assets

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Prepaid Expenses

Furniture/Fixture/Eqpt

Current Assets

Liabilities & Net Assets

Accounts Receivable

Total Current Assets

Total Fixed Assets



Current Period

Actual

Current Period

Budget

Year-to-Date

Actual

Year-to-Date

Budget 8/31/2022 8/31/2021

Reimbursements 0 0 216 0 0 0 

Interest Income & Miscellaneous 683 92 12,106 1 733 930 309 

Lease Payments 0 4,563 58,250 36,500 51,000 40,750 

PILOT Application / Admin Fees 0 23,333 52,916 2 186,667 197,783 59,973 

PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 65,000 

683 27,988 123,488 223,900 249,713 166,032 

Business Expense 10 83 794 667 184 55 

Contracted Service-Accounting 625 625 5,000 5,000 4,667 4,667 

Contracted Services - Legal 850 850 6,800 6,800 6,750 6,400 

Legal Services & PILOT Clawback MSP 0 0 0 0 0 10,653 

Contracted Services- Other 169 417 1,353 3,333 3,269 58,131 

Marketing- Contracted Services 0 83 6,330 667 735 45 

Dues & Subscriptions 0 167 1,250 1,333 1,250 1,385 

Insurance - General 371 333 2,528 2,667 2,576 2,582 

Special ED Projects Contingency 10,417 10,417 83,333 83,333 66,667 66,667 

Tuition Agreement 0 0 3,750 3 0 0 0 

Office Supplies & Expense 0 0 240 0 470 570 

Seminars & Conferences 0 250 0 2,000 1,179 0 

Service Fees 14,700 14,700 117,600 117,600 112,000 106,667 

27,142 27,925 228,979 223,400 199,747 257,822 

(26,458) 62 (105,490) 500 49,966 (91,790)

Total Revenue

Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess or (Deficiency) of 

Revenue Over Expenses

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Budget Comparison Report

Current Period: 8/1/2023 - 8/31/2023

Budget Period: 1/1/2023 - 12/31/2023

With Comparative Periods Ending 8/31/2022 and 8/31/2021

3Revenue



Cash Flows From ( Used by) Operating Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets (63,588)$        

Adjustments for Noncash Transactions

Depreciation and Amortization 0

(Increase) Decrease in Assets

Accounts Receivable (13,170)

Accounts Receivable-PILOTs billed 0

Prepaid Expenses (297)

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (52,382)

Deferred Revenue (3,000)

PILOT Funds Due 0

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (132,438)

Cash Flows From (Used By) Investing Activities

Capital Expenditures 0

Net Cash From (Used by) Investing Activities 0

Cash Flows From (Used By) Financing Activities

Repayments of Long Term Debt 0

Proceeds from  Long Term Debt 0

Net Cash Flows (Used by) Financing Activities 0

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (132,438)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Period 927,051

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Period 794,613$        

Oneida County Industrial Development Agency

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period Ending August 31, 2023
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2024 Budget

2023 Year To Date Annualized 2024

REVENUES Budget 8/31/2023 12/31/2023 Budget NOTES

Bank Interest Income 1,100              11,423            20,200            17,400            Interest Rates have increased - unsure of interest income for 2024

Annual Lease Payments 54,750            58,250            58,250            63,500            2023-24 project list

PILOT Application / Admin Fees 280,000          52,916            124,473          280,000          Annualized is estimated closings from September  2023-Year End

TOTAL REVENUES 335,850          122,589          202,923          360,900          

EXPENSES

Contracted Services (Annual Audit) 7,500              5,000              7,500              7,750              2024 Annual Audit $7,750

Contracted Services Legal Fees 10,200            6,800              10,200            10,200            $850 pr month

Website Marketing Program 1,000              6,330              9,495              9,500              Target Industry Specific Site Selectors/ keeping IDA webpage maintained

Consultant/IT Services 5,000              1,353              2,030              3,000              IT Services- Web Ex Subscription, Cloud Recording Storage, licenses etc.

Dues and Subscriptions 2,000              1,250              1,250              2,000              IDA Voluntary Dues $1250, $750 EDC 

Insurance 4,000              1,968              4,220              4,500              D&O coverage; General Liability and Umbrella

Spec Eco Dev Projects Contingency 125,000          83,333            125,000          125,000          Additional Contractual Agreement and Spec Economic Projects 

Spec Eco Dev Projects Other -                  3,750              3,750              10,000            2023 Madison- Oneida Boces Carpentry Entry Level Course Sponsorship/2024 Miscellaneous 

Office Supplies and Expense 1,000              809                 1,214              1,230              Bank Service Charges, telephone, and misc. office & conferenceing 

Training, Seminars and Conferences Travel 3,000              -                  -                  2,500              IDA Seminar Fees (NYS EDC) Travel

EDGE Contractual Service 176,400          117,600          176,400          185,220          Anticipate increased reporting requirements due to PAAA & Increased Office & Real Property Expenses; 5% increase from py 

TOTAL EXPENSES 335,100          228,193          341,058          360,900          

Projected Excess/(Loss) Revenues Over Expenses 750                 (105,604)         (138,135)         (0)                    

Added note- IDA cash balance as of 8/31/23 795,521.00$    

2024 Budgeted Expenses 360,900.00$    

Cash Available to continue to renew in a CD 434,621.00$    

Cash Currently in CD's 610,039.00$    Black Red

2023 2024

Open Project List: As of 8/30/23

Central Utica Building (received November 2021) -$                                                  130,572.00$           

Kris-Tech Wire, Inc. (received January 2023) 53,875.00$                                       -$                       

Collins Solar (received March 2023) -$                                                  38,841.00$             

Yoder Properties (received May 2023) 17,682.00$                                       -$                       

Mohawk, Adirondack & Northern Railroad, Inc./Genesee & Mohawk Vally Railroad, Inc -$                                                  5,000.00$               

71,557.00$                                       174,413.00$           

Estimated projects closing in 2023; if the closing is 

TBD, the admin fees are estimated to be 2024 revenue



Yoder Properties, 
Ltd. (Stark Truss) 
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Transcript Document No. [    ] 

 

 

SEQR Resolution 

Yoder Properties, Ltd. Facility 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF YODER PROPERTIES, 

LTD. WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE 
ENVIRONMENT 

 
WHEREAS, Yoder Properties, Ltd., on behalf of itself and/or the principals of 

Yoder Properties, Ltd., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the 

foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Agency to enter into a 
transaction in which the Agency will assist in (a) acquisition of a 8.638± acre parcel of 

land located at 878 Ellsworth Road, Griffiss Business & Technology Park, City of Rome, 
New York (the “Land”); (b) construction on the Land of a 25,200± square foot 
manufacturing building, a 2,000± square foot two story wood office structure and all 

infrastructure, parking, sidewalks and landscaping to service the same (collectively, the 
“Improvements”); and (c) acquisition and installation of equipment in the Improvements 

(the “Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of manufacturing and supplying wood 
components for the construction industry (the Land, the Improvements and the 
Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the acquisition, construction and 

equipping of the Facility is referred to collectively as the “Project”); and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 

Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 

Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 

defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 

 
WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 

equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 

Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 

meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 

significant effect upon the environment, the Agency received the Determination of 
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Significance (the “Planning Board Review”) of the City of Rome Planning Board (the 

“Lead Agency”), which is on file at the office of the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 
the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 

Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the Facility and such further investigation of the Facility and its 

environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application and the EAF; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes an "Unlisted Action" (as defined in 
the Regulations); 

 

(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 
noted in the EAF for the Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 

 
(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 

existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 

levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 

or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substan tial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 

endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 

designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  

 
(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 

plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 
 

(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 

or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  
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(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 
either the quantity or type of energy; 

 
(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 

human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 

(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 
large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 

to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 
 

(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 

environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 

a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby concurs with the determinations and 

findings of the Lead Agency and determines that the Facility will not have a significant 

impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation of an 
environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  As a result, the Agency has 

prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 

file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the Facility (said 
negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 

negative declaration attached hereto). 
 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 :  SS.: 

COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 

Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
September 15, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 

members were: 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 

meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 

all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _______, 2023. 

 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

                                    
 
 
 
 
 

TO:      OCIDA Board of Directors 

FROM:  Mark Kaucher 

DATE:  June 1, 2023 

 

RE:   Yoder Properties, LLC/Stark Truss 
         June 1, 2023 Public Hearing Minutes   
         Mohawk Valley EDGE, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome NY 13441 
            
   

Representing the Agency: Mark Kaucher, Hannah Phillips 

Other Attendees via WebEx: Dan Webb, Stark Truss 

Public hearing opened at 10:00 AM 

Reading of the public hearing notice was waived, upon consensus of the 
attendees.  

No comments were made.  

Public Hearing was closed at 10:15 AM 

 

 

Anthony J. Picente Jr. 
County Executive 

 

Shawna M. Papale  
Secretary/Executive Director 

 
Timothy Fitzgerald 
Assistant Secretary 

 

 

David C. Grow 
Chairman 
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Vice Chairperson 

 
Mary Faith Messenger 

Treasurer 
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Eugene Quadraro 
Stephen Zogby 

584 Phoenix Drive,  
Rome, New York 13441-4105 
(315) 338-0393, fax (315) 338-5694 
info@mvedge.org     www.mvedge.org  
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Final Authorizing Resolution 
Yoder Properties, Ltd. (Stark Truss) Facility 
 
Transcript Document No. [   ] 

 
Date: September 15, 2023 

 
At a meeting of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) 

hosted at 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York 13441 on September 15, 2023, the following 
members of the Agency were: 

 
Members Present:   
Members Present: WebEx:   
 
EDGE Staff Present:  
EDGE Staff Present: WebEx:  
 
Other Attendees:  
Other Attendees: WebEx:  
 
 
After the meeting had been duly called to order, the Chairman announced that among 

the purposes of the meeting was to consider and take action on certain matters pertaining to 
proposed financial assistance to Yoder Properties, Ltd.. 
 

The following resolution was duly moved, seconded, discussed and adopted with the 
following members voting: 
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RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO EXECUTE THE LEASE 
AGREEMENT, THE LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, THE PILOT AGREEMENT, THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT, THE 
RECAPTURE AGREEMENT, THE LOAN DOCUMENTS AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 
WITH RESPECT TO THE YODER PROPERTIES, LTD. FACILITY LOCATED IN THE 
CITY OF ROME, ONEIDA COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of New York (collectively, 
the “Act”), the Agency was created with the authority and power among other things, to assist 
with the acquisition of certain industrial development projects as authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, Yoder Properties, Ltd., on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Yoder 
Properties, Ltd., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which the 
Agency will assist in (a) acquisition of a 8.638± acre parcel of land located at 878 Ellsworth 
Road, Griffiss Business & Technology Park, City of Rome, New York (the “Land”); (b) 
construction on the Land of a 25,200± square foot manufacturing building, a 2,000± square foot 
two story wood office structure and all infrastructure, parking, sidewalks and landscaping to 
service the same (collectively, the “Improvements”); and (c) acquisition and installation of 
equipment in the Improvements (the “Equipment”), all to be used for the purpose of 
manufacturing and supplying wood components for the construction industry (the Land, the 
Improvements and the Equipment referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the acquisition, 
construction and equipping of the Facility is referred to collectively as the “Project”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency will acquire a leasehold interest in the Facility pursuant to a 

Lease Agreement from the Company to the Agency (the “Lease Agreement”) and lease the 
Facility back to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement from the Agency to the 
Company (the “Leaseback Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company will further sublease the Facility to Stark Truss Company, Inc. 

(the “Sublessee”) for its operation pursuant to a Sublease Agreement (the “Sublease 
Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company intends to finance a portion of the costs of the Facility by 

securing a loan from a lender to be identified (the “Bank”) in the principal amount not to exceed 
$1,914,000.00 to be secured by a Mortgage and Security Agreement from the Agency and the 
Company to the Bank (the “Mortgage” and together with any other security instruments the 
Bank deems appropriate, the “Loan Documents”) ; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency by resolution duly adopted on May 5, 2023 (the “Inducement 

Resolution”) decided to proceed under the provisions of the Act to lease the Facility and 
directed that a public hearing be held and enter into the Lease Agreement and Leaseback 
Agreement; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the 
Company in connection with the Project in the form of exemptions from sales and use taxes, 
exemptions from mortgage recording taxes, and a reduction in real property taxes for a period of 
ten years (the “Financial Assistance”), which financial assistance is a deviation from the 
Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and 
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 WHEREAS, the value of the Financial Assistance is described below: 
 

• Sales and use tax exemption not to exceed $78,450.00 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption not to exceed $14,350.00 
• Exemptions from real property taxes valued at approximately $568,959.00 

 
 WHEREAS, the Financial Assistance deviates from the Policy insofar as the Company 
will make fixed PILOT Payments for ten years in the following amounts: 
 

Year 1 $35,221 
Year 2 $35,926 
Year 3 $36,644 
Year 4 $37,377 
Year 5 $38,125 
Year 6 $77,775 
Year 7 $79,330 
Year 8 $80,917 
Year 9 $82,535 
Year 10 $84,186 

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating deviating from its Policy for the following 
reasons: 
 

• The nature of the proposed project: The Company is constructing a brand new 
manufacturing facility. The Agency wishes to encourage the growth of the manufacturing 
industry in the region 

 
• The extent to which financial assistance for the properties will create or retain 

permanent, private sector jobs: The Company will retain 22 jobs and create 8 jobs. 
Were it not for the Agency financial assistance, the Company would consider expanding 
and consolidating operations in one of the Company’s existing locations outside of New 
York State 

 
• The estimated value of tax exemptions to be provided: By setting an annual fixed 

PILOT Payment, the taxing jurisdictions and the Company are better able to address 
financial planning; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Company and/or the Sublessee have committed to retain the existing 22 
FTEs for the term of the Leaseback Agreement and create an additional 8 FTEs at the Facility 
by the end of the third year of the Leaseback Agreement as a result of the Project, and the 
Agency will condition the proposed Financial Assistance on the Company achieving the same 
(the “Employment Obligation”), or else be subject to recapture or termination of Financial 
Assistance relating to the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023 the Agency sent certified letters to each of the affected tax 
jurisdictions, providing a copy of the Resolution, the date, time and location of the public 
hearing, the reasons the Agency intends to deviate from Policy and the opportunity to comment 
prior to the Agency authorizing Financial Assistance; and 
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WHEREAS, the Project will result in the removal or abandonment of the Company’s 
facility located in the Town of Whitestown, Oneida County, New York; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has represented in its application that the Project is 

reasonably necessary to (a) discourage the Company from moving out of State and 
consolidating operations at one of the Company’s existing locations outside of the State and (b) 
preserve the Company’s competitive position in its industry because the limitations of the 
existing property and facility impede the Company’s and/or the Sublessee’s ability to (i) attract 
and retain quality employees, (ii) expand its business operations and (iii) strengthen and grow 
its presence in Central New York; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023 the Agency sent certified letters to each of the affected tax 

jurisdictions at the site of the Companys existing facility, providing a copy of the Resolution, the 
date, time and location of the public hearing, the reasons the Agency intends to deviate from 
Policy and the opportunity to comment prior to the Agency authorizing Financial Assistance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency conducted a public hearing on June 1, 2023 and has received 

all comments submitted with respect to the Financial Assistance and the nature and location of 
the Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to indemnify the Agency against certain losses, 

claims, expenses, damages and liabilities which may arise in connection with the Project and 
the Agency’s leasehold interest in the Facility; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 

Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The Agency hereby finds and determines: 
 
(a) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 
(b) The Facility constitutes a “project”, as such term is defined in the Act; and 
 
(c) The construction and equipping of the Facility, the leasing of the Facility to the 

Company and the Agency’s Financial Assistance with respect thereto, will promote and maintain 
the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Oneida 
County and the State of New York and improve their standard of living and thereby serve the 
public purposes of the Act; and 

 
(d) The construction, equipping and financing of the Facility is reasonably necessary 

to induce the Company to (a) discourage the Company and/or the Sublessee from moving out 
of State; (b) preserve the Company’s and/or the Sublessee’s competitive position in its industry; 
and (c) maintain and expand the Company’s and/or the Sublessee’s business operations in the 
State of New York; and 

 
(e) Based upon representations of the Company and Company's Counsel, the 

Facility conforms with the local zoning laws and planning regulations of Oneida County and all 
regional and local land use plans for the area in which the Facility is located; and 
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(f) The SEQRA findings adopted by the Agency at its meeting on September 15, 
2023 encompassed the actions to be undertaken by this resolution and no changes have been 
made to the proposed action that would create new or increased adverse environmental 
impacts; and 

 
(g) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to undertake the Project; 

and 
 
(h) The Lease Agreement is an effective instrument whereby the Company grants 

the Agency a leasehold interest in the Facility; and 
 
(i) The Leaseback Agreement is an effective instrument whereby the Agency leases 

the Facility back to the Company; and 
 
(j) The Payment-In-Lieu-of-Tax Agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”) between the 

Company and the Agency will be an effective instrument whereby the Company agrees to make 
payments-in-lieu-of-taxes for the duration of the term of the Leaseback Agreement; and 

 
(k) The Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement (the 

“Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement”) between the Company and the 
Agency will be an effective instrument whereby the Company agrees to comply with all 
Environmental Laws (as defined therein) applicable to the Facility and will indemnify and hold 
harmless the Agency for all liability under all such Environmental Laws; and 

 
(l) The Job Creation and Recapture Agreement (the “Recapture Agreement”) 

between the Company and the Agency will be an effective instrument whereby the Company 
agrees that the Financial Assistance is conditioned upon the Company completing the Project 
substantially as presented to the Agency; and 

 
(m) The Loan Documents will be effective instruments whereby the Agency 

mortgages and/or assigns to the Bank its interest in the Facility. 
 
Section 2.  In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  

(i) acquire a leasehold interest in the Facility pursuant to the Lease Agreement, (ii) execute, 
deliver and perform the Lease Agreement, (iii) lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant 
to the Leaseback Agreement, (iv) execute, deliver and perform the Leaseback Agreement, (v) 
execute, deliver and perform the PILOT Agreement; (vi) execute and deliver the Environmental 
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, (vii) execute, delver and perform the Recapture 
Agreement, (viii) execute, deliver and perform the Loan Documents, and (ix) provide the 
Financial Assistance to the Company in support of the Project. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency is hereby authorized to accept a leasehold interest in the real 

property described in Exhibit A to the Lease Agreement and the personal property described in 
Exhibit B to the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or appropriate for the 
accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such 
acquisition are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 

 
Section 4.  The form and substance of the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, 

the PILOT Agreement, the Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement and the 
Recapture Agreement (each in substantially the Agency’s customary forms and which, prior to 
the execution and delivery thereof, may be redated) are hereby approved. The form and 
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substance of the Loan Documents are hereby approved, subject to the inclusion of the Agency’s 
standard finanancing provisions and subject to counsel review. 

 
Section 5. 
 
(a) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the Agency are 

hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Lease Agreement, the 
Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT Agreement, the Environmental Compliance and 
Indemnification Agreement, the Recapture Agreement and the Loan Documents, all in 
substantially the forms thereof approved at this meeting with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or any member of the 
Agency shall approve, and such other related documents as may be, in the judgment of the 
Chairman and Agency Counsel, necessary or appropriate to effect the transactions 
contemplated by this resolution (hereinafter collectively called the “Closing Documents”). The 
execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, or any member of the Agency shall 
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
(b) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary or member of the Agency are further 

hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional Authorized 
Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Leaseback Agreement). 

 
Section 6.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 

directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or 
provided for by the provisions of the Closing Documents, and to execute and deliver all such 
additional certificates, instruments and documents, pay all such fees, charges and expenses 
and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, 
employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and 
provisions of the Closing Documents binding upon the Agency. 

 
Section 7.   This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    ) ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 
That I have compared the annexed extract of the minutes of the meeting of the Agency, 

including the resolutions contained therein, held on September 15, 2023 with the originals 
thereof on file in my office, and that the same are true and correct copies of the proceedings of 
the Agency and of such resolutions set forth therein and of the whole of said original insofar as 
the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 
That the Lease Agreement, the Leaseback Agreement, the PILOT Agreement, the 

Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, the Recapture Agreement and the 
Loan Documents contained in this transcript of proceedings are each in substantially the forms 
presented to the Agency and/or approved by said meeting. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 

meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend in person and public notices of the 
time and place of said meetings were duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, 
and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____________________. 

 
ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
     Shawna M. Papale, Secretary 
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 
 
 

Inducement Resolution 
Above Grid Rome Solar LLC Facility 

 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-LEASEBACK 
TRANSACTION FOR THE BENEFIT OF ABOVE GRID ROME 
SOLAR LLC, ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION, AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A 
PUBLIC HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of 
Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the 
foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in 
construction of an approximately 5 megawatt AC ground-mounted solar energy 
system/community solar array  with solar panels connected to a single-axis tracking racking 
system consisting of two perivous gravel access roads, inverter pads, a fence surrounding the 
entirety of the equipment, underground wiring, and overhead utility interconnection to equipment 
(collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 50± acre portion of a 174.40± acre parcel of 
land located at 5727 Rome Taberg Road, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for 
the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State renewable energy goals by providing 
renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New York State Community Solar 
Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the 
construction of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land is leased by Rome Industrial Development Corporation (the 
“Owner”) to the Company pursuant to a Solar Ground Lease dated August 2, 2021 (the “Ground 
Lease”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, pursuant to Article 18-A 
of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of 
the State of New York, as may be amended from time to time (collectively, the “Act”) and the 
Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement (the 
“Leaseback Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility, to promote the development of renewable 
energy projects to support  New York State’s renewable  energy  goals  as  may  be established 
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or amended from time to time, and to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Facility constitutes a “community solar project” as defined by the New 
York State Energy and Research Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) and a “renewable 
energy project” as defined in the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 18, 2020 as amended on April 30, 2021 and March 25, 2022 
the Agency adopted a uniform tax exemption policy with respect to community solar projects 
(the “Solar UTEP”), in which it identifies terms of financial assistance for community solar 
projects and the related project eligibility criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the 
Company in connection with the Project in the form of provision for a fixed payment in lieu of 
taxes (the “PILOT Payments”) to be made by the Company to the Agency for a period of twenty-
five years, during which time the Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $7,000 per 
MW-AC of nameplate capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 
2 through year 25, which will be allocated among the affected tax jurisdictions in the same 
proportion that taxes would have been paid but for the Agency’s involvement (the “Financial 
Assistance”), which Financial Assistance is a deviation from the Solar UTEP, and which will be 
more particularly set forth in a final authorizing resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in its Application for 
Financial Assistance dated September 1, 2023 (the “Application”) the value of the Financial 
Assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Real property tax abatement   $517,966.00 (approximately) 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption Not requested 

 
 WHEREAS, the Company is requesting the Agency deviate from Policy for the following 
reasons: 
 

• The Facility will be located on vacant land that is owned by a not-for-profit entity and is 
currently not generating any revenue for the taxing jurisdictions; 

 
• The Land is not considered agricultural land or prime agricultural soil; 

 
• Despite various efforts by the Owner to market the Land, it has proven to be 

undevelopable largely due to the preponderance of wetlands; and 
 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the granting of 
Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that all persons with views 
in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency, or the 
location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback 
transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such notice (together with proof 
of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A; and 
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 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 
representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback transaction is either an 
inducement to the Company to maintain and expand the Facility in the County or is necessary to 
maintain the competitive position of the Company in its industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Financial Assistance is conditioned upon the Company’s 
representations that the project will be completed substantially in accordance with the project 
that is contained in the Application (the “Project Obligation”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the 
State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency constitutes a “State 
Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a significant 
effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency an 
Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the “Questionnaire”) with respect to 
the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rome Planning Board acted as lead agency for the purposes of 
SEQRA, and, prior to the granting of Financial Assistance, the Agency will adopt the 
determination and findings of the lead agency for purposes of SEQRA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The Agency accepts the Application submitted by the Company. 
 
  (b) The acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility and the 

Agency’s financial assistance therefor, will promote job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
the County and the people of the State of New York and improve their 
standard of living by supporting New York State’s renewable energy  
goals, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the same is, 
therefore, approved. 

 
  (b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into a 

lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing Financial 
Assistance for the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility, 
as reflected in the Application and as amended from time to time prior to 
the closing of the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
  (c) Based upon representations made by the Company in the Application, the 

Agency determines that (i) the Project is eligible for Financial Assistance 
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under the criteria described in the Solar UTEP and (ii) it is proper to 
deviate from Policy. 

 
Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and among the 
Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the Agency 
and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-leaseback 
transaction, and the development of the Facility (the "Agreement") is 
hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on 
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such 
changes in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve. The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of such 
approval. 

 
Section 3.  The Agency shall assist the Company in the acquisition, construction and 

equipping of the Facility and will provide the Financial Assistance with 
respect thereto subject to (i) obtaining all necessary governmental 
approvals, (ii) approval of the members of the Company, (iii) approval of 
the members of the Agency, (iv) receipt by the members of all comments 
submitted to the Agency at the Hearing, (v) agreement by the Agency and 
the Company upon mutually acceptable terms and conditions for the 
Leaseback Agreement and other documentation usual and customary to 
transactions of this nature, (vi) the condition that there are no changes in 
New York State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency from fulfilling its 
obligation and commitment as herein set forth to enter into the lease-
leaseback transaction, (v) provision in the Leaseback Agreement for an 
annual payment to the City of Rome (the “Host Community”) in lieu of a 
Host Community Agreement, (viii) a decommissioning plan acceptable to 
the Agency and the Host Community, (ix) proof that provision has been 
made to reserve funds for decommissioning of the Project, and 
(x) payment by the Company of the Agency's transaction fee and the fees 
and disbursements of bond counsel or transaction counsel, more 
particularly described in the Inducement Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the Hearing, 

so that the Agency may receive comments from all interested parties on 
the financial assistance contemplated by the Agency and the Financial 
Assistance requested by the Company. 

 
Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed Transaction 

Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback transaction. 
 
Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby authorized to 

work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare, for submission 
to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the lease-leaseback 
transaction. 
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Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed (i) to 
distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to do such 
further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to 
implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
September 15, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 
members were: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to and 
approved at such meeting. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend in person and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, 
and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on _____, 2023 
 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the 
New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on September __, 2023, at _____ a.m., local time, at 
584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York in connection with the following 
matters: 
  
 Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of Above Grid 
Rome Solar LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Company”) applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which the 
Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 5 megawatt AC ground-mounted solar 
energy system/community solar array  with solar panels connected to a single-axis tracking 
racking system consisting of two perivous gravel access roads, inverter pads, a fence 
surrounding the entirety of the equipment, underground wiring, and overhead utility 
interconnection to equipment (collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 50± acre 
portion of a 174.40± acre parcel of land located at 5727 Rome Taberg Road, City of Rome, 
County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York 
State renewable energy goals by providing renewable energy for consumers in the region 
under the New York State Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are 
referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred 
to as the “Project”). The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed by the Company. 
Rome Industrial Development Corporation (the “Owner”) owns the Land and leases it to the 
Company, and the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
 The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the Company in the form 
of reduction of real property taxes for a period of twenty-five years, during which time the 
Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $7,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate 
capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through year 25, 
which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy 
(Community Solar Policy), to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing 
Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described 
herein. 
 
 A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear and 
accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of the Facility. 
Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or electronically prior to the 
Public Hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed and posted on the Agency’ 
s website together with a video recording of the hearing. A copy of the Application for 
Financial Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the 
costs and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at the offices of 
the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website. 
 
      ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
      DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  September __, 2023   By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director  
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EXHIBIT B 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CONDUCTED ON SEPTEMBER __, 2023 

 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Lease-Leaseback Transaction 
Above Grid Rome Solar LLC Facility 

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at ________ a.m. 

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the principals of 
Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed 
on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) applied 
to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist 
in construction of an approximately 5 megawatt AC ground-mounted 
solar energy system/community solar array  with solar panels 
connected to a single-axis tracking racking system consisting of two 
perivous gravel access roads, inverter pads, a fence surrounding the 
entirety of the equipment, underground wiring, and overhead utility 
interconnection to equipment (collectively, the “Improvements”), 
situated on a 50± acre portion of a 174.40± acre parcel of land located 
at 5727 Rome Taberg Road, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the 
“Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State 
renewable energy goals by providing renewable energy for consumers 
in the region under the New York State Community Solar Program (the 
Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively as the “Facility” 
and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as the 
“Project”). The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed by the 
Company. Rome Industrial Development Corporation (the “Owner”) 
owns the Land and leases it to the Company, and the Company will 
lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the 
Company in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 
twenty-five years, during which time the Company shall make PILOT 
Payments equal to $7,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate capacity with 
an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through 
year 25, which financial assistance is a deviation from the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (Community Solar Policy), to be more 
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particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted 
by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described herein. 
 

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views. 

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ______ a.m. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Mark Kaucher 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on 
September __, 2023 at _____ a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, 
New York, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) pursuant to Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New 
York General Municipal Law, the hearing was open to the general public to attend, 
and public notice of the time and place of said hearing was duly given in accordance 
with such Title 1 of Article 18-A, (ii) the hearing in all respects were duly held, and 
(iii) members of the public had an opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 
 

___________________________________ 
Secretary 
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September 6, 2023 

Shawna Papale 
Executive Director, OCIDA 
584 Phoenix Drive 
Rome, NY 13441 
 

RE:  Above Grid Photovoltaic Project 

Dear Shawna, 

On behalf of RIDC, I am writing this letter to support the Above Grid application to the OCIDA for a solar PILOT. More 

specifically, to advocate for a deviation concerning the per-MW fee structure.  As you know RIDC is dedicated to improving 

the business climate and overall vibrancy of the Rome community.  This project not only advances our organization’s 

mission; it preserves and protects viable agricultural land in Oneida County by concentrating development on poor, under-

utilized property.  RIDC feels that the applicant’s request for a deviation is not only justified, but critical to maintaining 

financial viability and environmental sustainability. 

Primary among the reasons for our backing of the applicant’s reduced per-MW payment is the significant investment in 

site improvement required to support the project on an otherwise unusable site.  As you know, “greenfields” are much 

easier and less expensive to develop.  However, this comes at a cost to our environment, food systems, and community 

resiliency.  Sprawl and avoidance of difficult sites has proven, over decades of these costly mistakes, to be financially, 

ecologically, and socially unsustainable – resulting in operational inefficiency and higher taxes for our Cities, in particular.  

Rome is no exception.  According to the American Farmland Trust, agricultural land in the United States is among the most 

productive – and expensive – in the world.  Since 1982, our country has irrevocably lost 31 million acres of farmland.  In 

addition to the detrimental effects of suburban sprawl on our regional economy, this ostensibly drives up the price of 

remaining farmland, making it difficult for the remaining family farms to afford high-quality agricultural land. 

This is partly why RIDC, for decades, has sought to achieve the highest and best use for some of the most difficult sites in 

Rome; not just brownfield properties, but properties with little-to-no market value or industrial development potential.  

It is well known that RIDC has struggled to develop the Rome-Taberg Road property while protecting the unique ecology 

of the surrounding land.  However, every project has been met with failure due to terrible site conditions and other factors 

beyond our control.   Over the years, many of the proposed industrial and commercial prospects have faltered and 

collapsed since the 1990’s - primarily owing to the poor geotechnical conditions and wetlands on this site.  As we learned 

with the Rome Humane Society project, it was not even possible to build a simple, one-story, slab-on-grade structure with 

minimal loading (i.e., dogs and cats) due to the subsurface conditions.  After tens of thousands of dollars spent on studies 

and improvements had come to no avail, the site has been languishing, and unofficially written-off as unbuildable. 

Rather than throw in the towel, in recent years, RIDC shifted gears and recruited solar developers in order to maximize 

the potential, if any, of the approximately 30 acres that were not encumbered by wetland, cultural, historic, recreational, 

or ecological concerns.  After a number of solar developers tried and failed, RIDC began working with Above Grid and their 

team.  Despite strong headwinds and a poor site, their team has stayed with us through obstacle after obstacle – each 

obstacle incrementally eroding the potential return on investment.  After 3+ years and multiple iterations, zoning/planning 

board meetings, moratoriums, and negotiations with the DEC and private utilities, we are on the precipice of a project.   
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If financially viable, this project will have succeeded in advancing the state’s renewable energy goals, offered affordable 

community solar energy to surrounding residents, and protected more than 30 acres of viable farmland in Oneida County.  

Furthermore, it could produce a modest, but sustained, income stream for RIDC generated by proceeds from a long-term 

ground lease.  That funding, as you know, is immediately returned to the community through facilitation of community & 

economic development initiatives – including brownfield remediation, industrial expansion, mixed use development, 

tourism enhancements, low-interest gap financing, and Downtown Revitalization Initiative implementation.   

In short, we invest in projects that help to grow the and strengthen the local economy; and this funding stream will ensure 

that we continue to fulfill our mission for decades to come. 

If we can be of any assistance, If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Ron Edwards, President 
 
Cc:    Mark Kaucher 
 Christian Mercurio 
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Transcript Document No. [    ] 
 
 

SEQR Resolution 
Above Grid Rome Solar LLC Facility 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF ABOVE GRID ROME 
SOLAR LLC WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT 
ON THE ENVIRONMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, on behalf of itself and/or the 

principals of Above Grid Rome Solar LLC, and/or an entity formed or to be formed on 
behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida 
County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in 
which the Agency will assist in construction of an approximately 5 megawatt AC ground-
mounted solar energy system/community solar array  with solar panels connected to a 
single-axis tracking racking system consisting of two perivous gravel access roads, 
inverter pads, a fence surrounding the entirety of the equipment, underground wiring, 
and overhead utility interconnection to equipment (collectively, the “Improvements”), 
situated on a 50± acre portion of a 174.40± acre parcel of land located at 5727 Rome 
Taberg Road, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of 
furthering the mission of New York State renewable energy goals by providing 
renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New York State Community 
Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively as the 
“Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 

Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 
defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 
equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 
Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 
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WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed the Determination of 
Significance dated August 8, 2023 (the “Planning Board Review”) by the City of Rome 
Planning Board (the “Lead Agency”), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by 
the Agency at this meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 

the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 
Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the Facility and such further investigation of the Facility and its 
environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application and the EAF; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes a "Type 1 Action" (as defined in the 
Regulations); 

 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the EAF for the Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 
 

(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 
existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 
levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 
or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 
endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 

designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  
 

(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 
plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 
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(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 

or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 

either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 

large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 

 
(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby concurs with the determinations and 

findings of the Lead Agency and determines that the Facility will not have a significant 
impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation of an 
environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  As a result, the Agency has 
prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the Facility (said 
negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 
negative declaration attached hereto). 
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Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
                   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 



 

 
  
   
16495683.1 9/8/2023 

 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
September 15, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 
members were: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 
all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout.. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _______, 2023. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
            Shawna Papale, Secretary 
 

 

















































































































76,621.00$      545.79$           Town
41,000.00$      1,390.43$        School

53.51% 432.06$           County
2,368.28$        

105,100.00$    15,666.43$      Town
1,071,765.00$ 39,910.91$      School
1,176,865.00$ 12,401.92$      County

67,979.25$      

Taxing Jurisdiction Tax Rate Percentage Pro-Rata Portion Taxes Per FMV
City of Rome 13.3120 13.3120% 0.2305 15,666.43$      
Oriskany School District 33.9129 33.9129% 0.5871 39,910.91$      
Oneida County  10.5381 10.5381% 0.1824 12,401.92$      
Total 57.7630 57.7630% 1.0000 67,979.25$      Total Taxes For 1 Year

20,599.77$      Total Per MW

1,699,481.32$ 
Total 25 Years 0% 

Escalator

YEAR City of Rome
Oriskany School 

District
Oneida County Total

Full Assessment with No 
Escalator

Full Assessment with 2% 
Escalator

Current Property Taxes 
with a 2% Escalator 

1 7,605.15$ 19,374.44$      6,020.42$           33,000.00$      67,979.25$ 67,979.25$ 2,368.28$
2 7,757.25$ 19,761.93$      6,140.82$           33,660.00$      67,979.25$ 69,338.84$ 2,415.65$
3 7,912.39$ 20,157.17$      6,263.64$           34,333.20$      67,979.25$ 70,725.61$ 2,463.96$
4 8,070.64$ 20,560.31$      6,388.91$           35,019.86$      67,979.25$ 72,140.13$ 2,513.24$
5 8,232.05$ 20,971.52$      6,516.69$           35,720.26$      67,979.25$ 73,582.93$ 2,563.50$
6 8,396.69$ 21,390.95$      6,647.03$           36,434.67$      67,979.25$ 75,054.59$ 2,614.77$
7 8,564.63$ 21,818.76$      6,779.97$           37,163.36$      67,979.25$ 76,555.68$ 2,667.07$
8 8,735.92$ 22,255.14$      6,915.57$           37,906.63$      67,979.25$ 78,086.79$ 2,720.41$
9 8,910.64$ 22,700.24$      7,053.88$           38,664.76$      67,979.25$ 79,648.53$ 2,774.82$

10 9,088.85$ 23,154.25$      7,194.95$           39,438.05$      67,979.25$ 81,241.50$ 2,830.31$
11 9,270.63$ 23,617.33$      7,338.85$           40,226.82$      67,979.25$ 82,866.33$ 2,886.92$
12 9,456.04$ 24,089.68$      7,485.63$           41,031.35$      67,979.25$ 84,523.66$ 2,944.66$
13 9,645.16$ 24,571.47$      7,635.34$           41,851.98$      67,979.25$ 86,214.13$ 3,003.55$
14 9,838.07$ 25,062.90$      7,788.05$           42,689.02$      67,979.25$ 87,938.41$ 3,063.62$
15 10,034.83$                25,564.16$      7,943.81$           43,542.80$      67,979.25$ 89,697.18$ 3,124.90$
16 10,235.52$                26,075.44$      8,102.69$           44,413.66$      67,979.25$ 91,491.12$ 3,187.39$
17 10,440.23$                26,596.95$      8,264.74$           45,301.93$      67,979.25$ 93,320.95$ 3,251.14$
18 10,649.04$                27,128.89$      8,430.04$           46,207.97$      67,979.25$ 95,187.37$ 3,316.16$
19 10,862.02$                27,671.47$      8,598.64$           47,132.13$      67,979.25$ 97,091.11$ 3,382.49$
20 11,079.26$                28,224.90$      8,770.61$           48,074.77$      67,979.25$ 99,032.94$ 3,450.14$
21 11,300.85$                28,789.40$      8,946.02$           49,036.26$      67,979.25$ 101,013.59$ 3,519.14$
22 11,526.86$                29,365.18$      9,124.94$           50,016.99$      67,979.25$ 103,033.87$ 3,589.52$
23 11,757.40$                29,952.49$      9,307.44$           51,017.33$      67,979.25$ 105,094.54$ 3,661.31$
24 11,992.55$                30,551.54$      9,493.59$           52,037.68$      67,979.25$ 107,196.43$ 3,734.54$
25 12,232.40$                31,162.57$      9,683.46$           53,078.43$      67,979.25$ 109,340.36$ 3,809.23$

Total 243,595.08$             620,569.08$    192,835.73$      1,056,999.89$ 1,699,481.32$                 2,177,395.85$                 75,856.72$

642,481.43$ 1,120,395.96$                 
25,699.26$ 44,815.84$
20,599.77$ 26,392.68$

UNIFORM Percentage of Value

City of Rome Assessment provided by Joe Surace
Land Assessment (21.02 Acres)

Sample PILOT Calculations for ONEIDA COUNTY IDA

2023 Oneida County Tax Records from Landowner Current Taxes (Vacant Land)
FMV Value Per Assessor as of 7/26/2022

Assessed Value as of 7/26/2022

Solar Array Assessment
Assessed Value

Full Assessment

PILOT PAYMENTS

Estimates of Tax Rates based on information provided by Landowner and County Records

Average Cost Per MW/Year

Total PILOT Saving over 25 Year
Average PILOT Savings Per Year

100% Taxation Sample

3.3MW @ 10,000/MW with a 2% annual escalator per year, for 25 years

< PILOT Value$ 1,120,395.96$                 
25,699.26

$ 26,392.68$





































Determination of Significance - Type 1 and Unlisted Actions 

SEQR Status: ii Type I □ Lnlisted 

Identify portions of EAF completed for this Project: 11!!1 Part I 11!!1 Part 2 11!!1 Part 3 

Upon review of the information recorded on this EAF, as noted, plus this additional support information 
P.•o;ect S'NPPP S1:e Pan and Oela1 o�a·,'Vlr1gs. Appl1carl Slaleme"1lS FEMA. Qvdp3,r, \taos, NYSOt:C Env1�o"neNG 'Japoer. NVSER:::>A SOiar GuidebOOk. a'lC Ptoduci Eng nettr "IQ Spi,o'1�110flS 

and considering both the magnitude and importance of each identified potential impact, it is the conclusion of the 
c,1y of Rome Planning Board as lead agency that: 

ii A. This project will result in no significant adverse impacts on the environment, and, therefore, an environmental impact 
statement need not be prepared. Accordingly, this negative declaration is issued. 

□ B. Although this project could have a significant adverse impact on the environment, that impact will be avoided or 
substantially mitigated because of the following conditions which will be required by the lead agency:

There will, therefore, be no significant adverse impacts from the project as conditioned. and, therefore, this conditioned negative 
declaration is issued. A conditioned negative declaration may be used only for IJ:\'LISTED actions (see 6 \/YCRR 617 .d). 

□ C. This Project may result in one or more significant adverse impacts on the environment. and an environmental impact
statement must be prepared to further assess the impact(s) and possible mitigation and to explore alternatives to avoid or reduce those
impacts. Accordingly, this positive declaration is issued.

�ame of Action: Site Plan Approval for Construction of 18.3 Acre Solar Array 

:--.ame of Lead Agency: City of Rome Planning Board 

:-,Jame of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: Mark Esposito 

Title of Responsible Officer: Chair 

Signature of Responsible Officer in Lead Agency: 

Signature of Preparer (if different from Responsibl 

For Further Information: 

Contact Person: Garret S. Wyckoff 

Address: 198 N. Washington Street,cj 
Telephone '-lumber: (315)339-7644
E-mail: Gwyckoff@RomeCityGov .S

For Type I Actions and Conditioned 1'egative Declarations, a copy of this Notice is sent to: 

Date: 

Date: 09/15/2021 

Chief Executive Officer of the political subdivision in which the action will be principally located (e.g., Town I City/ Village of) 
Other involved agencies (if any) 
Applicant (if any) 
Environmental \:otice Rulletin: http://www.dec.nv.gov/enb/enb.html 

• 

I 

























m. Identify the predominant wildlife species that occupy or use the project site:
Squirrels, rabbits, raccoons woodchucks, chipmunks, rodents aeer, fox, coyo!e, crows, song61ras 
raptors, frogs, & snakes 

n. Does the project site contain a designated significant natural community? 0Yesll)No 
If Yes:

i. Describe the habitat/community (composition, function, and basis for designation):

ii. Source(s) of description or evaluation:
iii. Extent of community/habitat:

• Currently: acres 
• Following completion of project as proposed: acres 
• Gain or loss (indicate+ or-): acres 

o. Does project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by the federal government or NYS as 0 Yesl2]1 o 
endangered or threatened, or does it contain any areas identified as habitat for an endangered or threatened species?

If Yes: 
i. Species and listing (endangered or threatened):

p. Does the project site contain any species of plant or animal that is listed by NYS as rare, or as a species of UYesl2]No 
special concern?

If Yes: 
i. Species and !isling:

q. Is the project site or adjoining area currently used for hunting, trapping, fishing or shell fishing? 0Yesl2]No 
If yes, give a brief description of how the proposed action may affect that use:

E.3. Designated Public Resources On or Near Project Site

a. Is the project site, or any portion of it, located in a designated agricultural district certified pursuant to OYesl2]No 
Agriculture and Markets Law, Article 25-AA, Section 303 and 304?

If Yes, provide county plus district name/number: 

b. Are agricultural lands consisting of highly productive soils present? OYesl2]No 
i. If Yes: acreage(s) on project site?
ii. Source(s) of soil rating(s):

c. Does the project site contain all or part of, or is it substantially contiguous to, a registered National OYesl2]No 
Natural Landmark?

If Yes: 
i. Nature of the natural landmark: 0 Biological Community 0 Geological Feature 
ii. Provide brief description of landmark, including values behind designation and approximate size/extent:

d. Is the project site located in or does it adjoin a state listed Critical Environmental Area? OYe 12] 0 

If Yes:
i. CEA name:
ii. Basis for designation:

iii. Designating agency and date:

Page 12ofl3 
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Transcript Document No. [   ] 
 
 

Inducement Resolution 
BW Solar Holding Inc. Facility 

 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TAKING PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL 
ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH A LEASE-LEASEBACK 
TRANSACTION FOR THE BENEFIT OF BW SOLAR HOLDING 
INC., ACCEPTING AN APPLICATION, AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AN INDUCEMENT 
AGREEMENT, AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO CONDUCT A 
PUBLIC HEARING, AND MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS AND 
DETERMINATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, BW Solar Holding Inc., on behalf of itself and/or the principals of BW Solar 
Holding Inc., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in construction of an 
approximately 3.3 megawatt AC ground mounted photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking 
and foundations, inverters and transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and all 
improvements and connections required to transfer and deliver generation offsite, access road, 
security fencing and gating, safety signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels (collectively, 
the “Improvements”), situated on a 18± acre portion of a 41± acre parcel of land located at 6821 
Martin Street, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the 
mission of New York State renewable energy goals by providing renewable energy for 
consumers in the region under the New York State Community Solar Program (the Land and 
the Improvements are referred to collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the 
Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land is leased by Teresa Campanaro (the “Owner”) to the Company 
pursuant to an Option to Lease dated January 13, 2021 (the “Ground Lease”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company will lease the Facility to the Agency, pursuant to Article 18-A 
of the General Municipal Law of the State of New York and Chapter 372 of the Laws of 1970 of 
the State of New York, as may be amended from time to time (collectively, the “Act”) and the 
Agency will lease the Facility back to the Company pursuant to a Leaseback Agreement (the 
“Leaseback Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Act authorizes and empowers the Agency to promote, develop, 
encourage and assist projects such as the Facility, to promote the development of renewable 
energy projects to support  New York State’s renewable  energy  goals  as  may  be established 
or amended from time to time, and to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity 
and economic welfare of the people of the State of New York; and 
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 WHEREAS, the Facility constitutes a “community solar project” as defined by the New 
York State Energy and Research Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) and a “renewable 
energy project” as defined in the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on September 18, 2020 as amended on April 30, 2021 and March 25, 2022 
the Agency adopted a uniform tax exemption policy with respect to community solar projects 
(the “Solar UTEP”), in which it identifies terms of financial assistance for community solar 
projects and the related project eligibility criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to the 
Company in connection with the Project in the form of provision for a fixed payment in lieu of 
taxes (the “PILOT Payments”) to be made by the Company to the Agency for a period of twenty-
five years, during which time the Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $10,000 per 
MW-AC of nameplate capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 
2 through year 25, which will be allocated among the affected tax jurisdictions in the same 
proportion that taxes would have been paid but for the Agency’s involvement (the “Financial 
Assistance”), which Financial Assistance is consistent with the Solar UTEP, and which will be 
more particularly set forth in a final authorizing resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon representations made by the Company in its Application for 
Financial Assistance dated September 5, 2023 (the “Application”) the value of the Financial 
Assistance is described as follows: 
 

• Real property tax abatement   $1,120,396.00 (approximately) 
• Mortgage recording tax exemption Not requested 

 
 WHEREAS, prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback transaction, and the granting of 
Financial Assistance, a public hearing (the “Hearing”) will be held so that all persons with views 
in favor of or opposed to either the Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency, or the 
location or nature of the Facility, can be heard; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Hearing will be given prior to the closing of a lease-leaseback 
transaction, and the granting of any Financial Assistance, and such notice (together with proof 
of publication) will be substantially in the form annexed hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the minutes of the Hearing are or will be annexed hereto as Exhibit B; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application and to 
representations by the Company that the proposed lease-leaseback transaction is either an 
inducement to the Company to maintain and expand the Facility in the County or is necessary to 
maintain the competitive position of the Company in its industry; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Financial Assistance is conditioned upon the Company’s 
representations that the project will be completed substantially in accordance with the project 
that is contained in the Application (the “Project Obligation”); and 
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 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the 
regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the 
State of New York (collectively, the “SEQR Act” or “SEQRA”), the Agency constitutes a “State 
Agency”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Facility may have a significant 
effect upon the environment, the Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency an 
Environmental Assessment Form and related documents (the “Questionnaire”) with respect to 
the Facility, a copy of which is on file at the office of the Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rome Planning Board acted as lead agency for the purposes of 
SEQRA, and, prior to the granting of Financial Assistance, the Agency will adopt the 
determination and findings of the lead agency for purposes of SEQRA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (a majority of the members thereof affirmatively concurring) that: 
 
Section 1. (a) The Agency accepts the Application submitted by the Company. 
 
  (b) The acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility and the 

Agency’s financial assistance therefor, will promote job opportunities, 
health, general prosperity and the economic welfare of the inhabitants of 
the County and the people of the State of New York and improve their 
standard of living by supporting New York State’s renewable energy  
goals, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act and the same is, 
therefore, approved. 

 
  (b) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into a 

lease-leaseback transaction for the purpose of providing Financial 
Assistance for the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facility, 
as reflected in the Application and as amended from time to time prior to 
the closing of the lease-leaseback transaction. 

 
  (c) Based upon representations made by the Company in the Application, the 

Agency determines that the Project is eligible for Financial Assistance 
under the criteria described in the Solar UTEP. 

 
Section 2.  The form and substance of a proposed inducement agreement (in 

substantially the form presented to this meeting) by and among the 
Agency and the Company setting forth the undertakings of the Agency 
and the Company with respect to the closing of the lease-leaseback 
transaction, and the development of the Facility (the "Agreement") is 
hereby approved.  The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized, on 
behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agreement, with such 
changes in terms and form as the Chairman shall approve. The execution 
thereof by the Chairman shall constitute conclusive evidence of such 
approval. 
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Section 3.  The Agency shall assist the Company in the acquisition, construction and 
equipping of the Facility and will provide the Financial Assistance with 
respect thereto subject to (i) obtaining all necessary governmental 
approvals, (ii) approval of the members of the Company, (iii) approval of 
the members of the Agency, (iv) receipt by the members of all comments 
submitted to the Agency at the Hearing, (v) agreement by the Agency and 
the Company upon mutually acceptable terms and conditions for the 
Leaseback Agreement and other documentation usual and customary to 
transactions of this nature, (vi) the condition that there are no changes in 
New York State Law which prohibit or limit the Agency from fulfilling its 
obligation and commitment as herein set forth to enter into the lease-
leaseback transaction, (v) provision in the Leaseback Agreement for an 
annual payment to the City of Rome (the “Host Community”) in lieu of a 
Host Community Agreement, (viii) a decommissioning plan acceptable to 
the Agency and the Host Community, (ix) proof that provision has been 
made to reserve funds for decommissioning of the Project, and 
(x) payment by the Company of the Agency's transaction fee and the fees 
and disbursements of bond counsel or transaction counsel, more 
particularly described in the Inducement Agreement. 

 
Section 4.  The Agency is hereby authorized and directed to schedule the Hearing, 

so that the Agency may receive comments from all interested parties on 
the financial assistance contemplated by the Agency and the Financial 
Assistance requested by the Company. 

 
Section 5.  The law firm of Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC is appointed Transaction 

Counsel in connection with the lease-leaseback transaction. 
 
Section 6.  Counsel to the Agency and Transaction Counsel are hereby authorized to 

work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare, for submission 
to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the lease-leaseback 
transaction. 

 
Section 7.   The Chairman of the Agency is hereby authorized and directed (i) to 

distribute copies of this resolution to the Company and (ii) to do such 
further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to 
implement the provisions of this resolution. 

 
Section 8.  This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
    : ss.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
 I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”), with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 
 
 Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
September 15, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 
members were: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
 
 The Agreement and the Application are in substantially the form presented to and 
approved at such meeting. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend in person and public notice of the 
time and place of said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held, 
and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout the meeting. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand on _____, 2023 

_____________________________________________ 
Shawna Papale, Secretary
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EXHIBIT A 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing pursuant to Article 18-A of the 
New York State General Municipal Law, will be held by the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on September __, 2023, at _____ a.m., local time, at 
584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, Oneida County, New York in connection with the following 
matters: 
  
 BW Solar Holding Inc., on behalf of itself and/or the principals of BW Solar Holding 
Inc., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the foregoing (collectively, 
the “Company”) applied to the Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will 
assist in construction of an approximately 3.3 megawatt AC ground mounted photovoltaic 
solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, inverters and transformers, necessary 
electrical interconnections and all improvements and connections required to transfer and 
deliver generation offsite, access road, security fencing and gating; safety signage and solar 
photo voltaic (“PV”) panels (collectively, the “Improvements”), situated on a 18± acre portion 
of a 41± acre parcel of land located at 6821 Martin Street, City of Rome, County of Oneida 
(the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York State renewable 
energy goals by providing renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New 
York State Community Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to 
collectively as the “Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as the 
“Project”). The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed by the Company. Teresa 
Campanaro (the “Owner”) owns the Land and leases it to the Company, and the Company 
will lease the Facility to the Agency. 
 
 The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the Company in the form 
of reduction of real property taxes for a period of twenty-five years, during which time the 
Company shall make PILOT Payments equal to $10,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate 
capacity with an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through year 25, 
which financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy 
(Community Solar Policy), to be more particularly described in a Final Authorizing 
Resolution to be adopted by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described 
herein. 
 
 A representative of the Agency will at the above-stated time and place hear and 
accept written comments from all persons with views in favor of or opposed to either the 
proposed financial assistance to the Company or the location or nature of the Facility. 
Comments may also be submitted to the Agency in writing or electronically prior to the 
Public Hearing. Minutes of the Public Hearing will be transcribed and posted on the Agency’ 
s website together with a video recording of the hearing. A copy of the Application for 
Financial Assistance filed by the Company with the Agency, including an analysis of the 
costs and benefits of the proposed Project, is available for public inspection at the offices of 
the Agency, 584 Phoenix Drive, Rome, New York and on the Agency’s website. 
 
      ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
      DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 
Dated:  September __, 2023   By:/s/ Shawna M. Papale, Executive Director  
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EXHIBIT B 

MINUTES OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CONDUCTED ON SEPTEMBER __, 2023 

 
Oneida County Industrial Development Agency 

Lease-Leaseback Transaction 
BW Solar Holding Inc. Facility 

1. Mark Kaucher, representing the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency (the “Agency”), called the hearing to order at ________ a.m. 

2. Mr. Kaucher also recorded the minutes of the hearing. 

3. Mr. Kaucher then described the proposed project and related financial 
assistance as follows: 

BW Solar Holding Inc., on behalf of itself and/or the principals of BW 
Solar Holding Inc., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of 
any of the foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) applied to the 
Agency to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will assist in 
construction of an approximately 3.3 megawatt AC ground mounted 
photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, 
inverters and transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and 
all improvements and connections required to transfer and deliver 
generation offsite, access road, security fencing and gating; safety 
signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels (collectively, the 
“Improvements”), situated on a 18± acre portion of a 41± acre parcel of 
land located at 6821 Martin Street, City of Rome, County of Oneida 
(the “Land”), all for the purpose of furthering the mission of New York 
State renewable energy goals by providing renewable energy for 
consumers in the region under the New York State Community Solar 
Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively 
as the “Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to 
as the “Project”). The Facility will be initially operated and/or managed 
by the Company. Teresa Campanaro (the “Owner”) owns the Land and 
leases it to the Company, and the Company will lease the Facility to 
the Agency. 
 
The Agency contemplates providing financial assistance to the 
Company in the form of reduction of real property taxes for a period of 
twenty-five years, during which time the Company shall make PILOT 
Payments equal to $10,000.00 per MW-AC of nameplate capacity with 
an annual increase of two percent (2%) applied during year 2 through 
year 25, which financial assistance is consistent with the Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (Community Solar Policy), to be more 
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particularly described in a Final Authorizing Resolution to be adopted 
by the Agency prior to the closing of the transactions described herein. 
 

4. Mr. Kaucher then opened up the hearing for comments from the floor for or 
against the proposed financial assistance and the location and nature of the 
Facility.  Attached is a listing of the persons heard and a summary of their 
views. 

5. Mr. Kaucher then asked if there were any further comments, and, there being 
none, the hearing was closed at ______ a.m. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Mark Kaucher 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 :  SS.: 
COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 That I have compared the foregoing copy of the minutes of public hearing 
held by the Oneida County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) on 
September __, 2023 at _____ a.m. local time, at 584 Phoenix Drive, City of Rome, 
New York, with the original thereof on file in the office of the Agency, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of the minutes in connection with such matter. 
 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) pursuant to Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New 
York General Municipal Law, the hearing was open to the general public to attend, 
and public notice of the time and place of said hearing was duly given in accordance 
with such Title 1 of Article 18-A, (ii) the hearing in all respects were duly held, and 
(iii) members of the public had an opportunity to be heard. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _____, 2023. 
 

___________________________________ 
Secretary 
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Transcript Document No. [    ] 
 
 

SEQR Resolution 
BW Solar Holding Inc. Facility 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY DETERMINING THAT ACTION 
TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE RELATING TO A 
PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF BW SOLAR HOLDING 
INC. WILL NOT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE 
ENVIRONMENT 

 
WHEREAS, BW Solar Holding Inc., on behalf of itself and/or the principals of BW 

Solar Holding Inc., and/or an entity formed or to be formed on behalf of any of the 
foregoing (collectively, the “Company”) has applied to the Oneida County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) to enter into a transaction in which the Agency will 
assist in construction of an approximately 3.3 megawatt AC ground mounted 
photovoltaic solar facility consisting of racking and foundations, inverters and 
transformers, necessary electrical interconnections and all improvements and 
connections required to transfer and deliver generation offsite, access road, security 
fencing and gating, safety signage and solar photo voltaic (“PV”) panels (collectively, 
the “Improvements”), situated on a 18± acre portion of a 41± acre parcel of land located 
at 6821 Martin Street, City of Rome, County of Oneida (the “Land”), all for the purpose 
of furthering the mission of New York State renewable energy goals by providing 
renewable energy for consumers in the region under the New York State Community 
Solar Program (the Land and the Improvements are referred to collectively as the 
“Facility” and the construction of the Improvements is referred to as the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, 

Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the "SEQR Act") 
and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental 
Conservation of the State of New York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the 
"Regulations"), the Agency desires to determine whether the construction and equipping 
of the Facility may have a "significant effect on the environment" (as said quoted term is 
defined in the SEQR Act and the Regulations) and therefore require the preparation of 
an environmental impact statement; and 
 

WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the construction, and 
equipping of the Facility may have a significant effect upon the environment, the 
Company has prepared and submitted to the Agency a long environmental assessment 
form (the "EAF"), a copy of which was presented to and reviewed by the Agency at this 
meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of the Agency; and 
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WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project may have a 
significant effect upon the environment, the Agency has reviewed the Determination of 
Significance dated September 15, 2021 (the “Planning Board Review”) by the City of 
Rome Planning Board (the “Lead Agency”), a copy of which was presented to and 
reviewed by the Agency at this meeting and copies of which are on file at the office of 
the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Regulations, the Agency has examined the EAF and 

the Planning Board Review in order to make a determination as to the potential 
environmental significance of the Facility. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

THE ONEIDA COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based on an examination of the Application, the EAF, the 
Planning Board Review, and based further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area 
surrounding the Facility and such further investigation of the Facility and its 
environmental effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the 
following findings and determinations with respect to the Facility: 
 

(A) The Facility is as described in the Application and the EAF; 
 

(B) The Facility constitutes a "Type 1 Action" (as defined in the 
Regulations); 

 
(C) No potentially significant impacts on the environment are 

noted in the EAF for the Facility, and none are known to the Agency; 
 

(D) The Facility will not result in (i) substantial adverse change in 
existing air quality; ground or surface water quality or quantity, traffic or noise 
levels; a substantial increase in solid waste production; or a substantial increase 
in potential for erosion, flooding, leaching or drainage problems; (ii) the removal 
or destruction of large quantities of vegetation or fauna; substantial interference 
with the movement of a resident or migratory fish or wildlife species; impacts on a 
significant habitat area; substantial adverse impacts on threatened or 
endangered species of animal or plant, or the habitat of such species; or (iii) 
other significant adverse impacts to natural resources;  

 
(E) The Facility will not affect a critical environmental area as 

designated pursuant to 6 NYCRR 617.14(g);  
 

(F) The Facility will not conflict with the community's current 
plans or goals as officially approved or adopted; 
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(G) The Facility will not result in the impairment of the character 

or quality of important historical, archeological, architectural, or aesthetic 
resources or of existing community or neighborhood character;  

 
(H) The Facility will not result in a major change in the use of 

either the quantity or type of energy; 
 

(I) The Facility will not result in the creation of a hazard to 
human health; 

 
(J) The Facility will not result in a substantial change in the use, 

or intensity of use, of land including architectural, open space or recreational 
resources, or in its capacity to support existing uses; 

 
(K) The Facility will not result in encouraging or attracting of a 

large number of people to a place or places for more than a few days, compared 
to the number of people who would come to such place absent the action; 

 
(L) The Facility will not result in the creation of a material 

demand for other actions that would result in one or more of the above 
consequences;  

 
(M) The Facility will not result in changes in two or more 

elements of the environment, no one of which has a significant impact on the 
environment, but when considered together result in a substantial adverse impact 
on the environment; and 

 
(N) The Facility will not result in two or more related actions 

undertaken, funded or approved by an agency, none of which has or would have 
a significant impact on the environment, but when considered cumulatively would 
meet one or more of the criteria in 6 NYCRR Section 617.7(c).   

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby concurs with the determinations and 

findings of the Lead Agency and determines that the Facility will not have a significant 
impact on the environment and the Agency will not require the preparation of an 
environmental impact statement with respect to the Facility.  As a result, the Agency has 
prepared a negative declaration with respect to the Facility. 
 

Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency is hereby directed to 
file in the Agency's records a negative declaration with respect to the Facility (said 
negative declaration to be substantially in the form and substantially to the effect of the 
negative declaration attached hereto). 
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Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

   [Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
:  SS.: 

COUNTY OF ONEIDA ) 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Oneida County Industrial Development 
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the Oneida County 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the 
office of the Agency, and the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of 
the proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened on 
September 15, 2023 at eight a.m., local time, at Rome, New York which the following 
members were: 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to vote, 
which resulted as follows: 

and, therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
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I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said 
meeting, (ii) the meeting was open for the public to attend and public notice of the date, 
time, location and call-in information for said meeting was duly given, (iii) the meeting in 
all respects was duly held, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of _______, 2023. 

_________________________________ 
      Shawna Papale, Secretary 



Housin 

Discussion 
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